
 

NOTICE OF A MEETING 

 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING 

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

111 LIBERTY STREET, SUITE 100 

COLUMBUS, OH 43215 

SCIOTO CONFERENCE ROOM 

 

Thursday, December 1, 2016 

1:30 p.m. 

 

AGENDA 

 

1. Welcome – Rory McGuiness, Chair 

 

2. Consent Agenda 

 Approval of November 3, 2016 minutes 

 

3. Executive Director’s Report – William Murdock 

 

4. Committee Updates 

 Building Committee – Derrick Clay, Chair 

 Regional Data Advisory Committee – Nancy Reger 

 

5. Regional Policy Roundtable – Laura Koprowski 

 Proposed Resolution 23-16: “Adoption of MORPC’s 2017-2018 

Public Policy Agenda” – Kim Maggard 

 

6. Sustainability Advisory Committee – Kerstin Carr & Christina O’Keeffe 

 Proposed Resolution 24-16: “Adoption of MORPC’s 2017-2020 

Regional Sustainability Agenda” 

 

7. Transportation Policy Committee – Thea Walsh 

 Proposed Resolution 21-16: "Authorizing the Executive Director to 

Enter into and Administer as the Prime Contract Holder of a 

Transportation Demand Management (TDM) and Ridematching 

System Platform Contract for the Ohio Association of Regional 

Councils (OARC) with RideAmigos" 

 Proposed Resolution 25-16: “Authorizing the Executive Director to 

Execute an Agreement with the City of Columbus to Support the 

Smart Columbus Project” 

 

8. Proposed Resolution 22-16: “Acceptance of the Fiscal Budget and Fund 

Account Appropriations for the operation of the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning 

Commission for 2017” – Shawn Hufstedler 

 



Executive Committee Meeting 

December 1, 2016 

Page 2 

9. 2017 State of the Region Awards – Laura Koprowski 

 

10. Draft Commission Agenda 

 

11. Other Business 

 

 

PLEASE NOTIFY SHARI SAUNDERS AT 614-233-4169 OR 

ssaunders@morpc.org IF YOU REQUIRE SPECIAL ASSISTANCE. 

 

The next Executive Committee Meeting is 

Thursday, January 5, 2017 at 1:30 p.m. 

111 Liberty Street, Suite 100 

Columbus, Ohio 43215 
 
 
When you arrive in MORPC’s lobby, a video screen will display the day’s meetings. 
Each meeting will list a phone extension. Use the phone in the lobby to call the 
extension and someone will come escort you to the meeting.   
 
When parking in MORPC's parking lot, please be sure to park in a MORPC visitor 
space or in a space marked with an “M”. Handicapped parking is available at the 
side of MORPC’s building. MORPC is accessible by CBUS. 



Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

 

Executive Committee 

Meeting Minutes 

 

 

Thursday, November 3, 2016 

1:30 p.m. 

 

Members Present 

Karen Angelou 

Marilyn Brown 

Derrick Clay 

Tracie Davies 

Matt Greeson 

Kim Maggard 

Rory McGuiness 

Gary Merrell 

Rob Platte 

Joe Stefanov 

 
MORPC Staff Present 

Kerstin Carr 

Shawn Hufstedler 

Ciel Klein 

Laura Koprowski 

William Murdock 

Christina O’Keeffe 

Nancy Reger 

Shari Saunders 

Thea Walsh 

Brandi Whetstone

 

Guests 

Jim Schimmer, Franklin County 

 

Welcome – Rory McGuiness 

Chair Rory McGuiness called the meeting to order at 1:35 p.m.  

 

Consent Agenda 

Marilyn Brown made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda, second by Derrick Clay; motion passed. 

 

Executive Director’s Report – William Murdock 

William Murdock recognized MORPC’s Finance Team for receiving the Government Finance Officers 

Association (GFOA) Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting for the 2015 

Comprehensive Financial Annual Report (CAFR). 

 

Mr. Murdock thanked MORPC Team Members who helped make the Summit on Sustainability a success. 

MORPC is receiving positive feedback on the Summit attended by 550. The Summit also paid for itself. 

 

The October 25 Weatherization Showcase in Groveport was well covered by the media. Mr. Murdock thanked 

MORPC Chair Greeson for participating in the Showcase. The homeowner was very enthusiastic and is helping 

her neighbors sign-up for MORPC’s energy efficiency program. She credits the program for saving her life. Her 

furnace, which the MORPC Team had replaced immediately, was emitting noxious gas into her home. 

 
A lot of behind-the-scenes work continues on Smart Columbus. The City of Columbus has created 16 work 

groups for the project; MORPC is on at least 10 of the work groups. 

 

The Competitive Advantage Projects (CAP) program is gathering a list of unfunded infrastructure projects on a 

county by county level in order to better position Central Ohio for economic and community development. 

MORPC is partnering with Columbus 2020 on the program that will help the region by matching up funding 

opportunities and sharing priorities with legislative decision makers. MORPC will provide technical assistance 

in developing funding strategies. The goal is to have the list completed by January 2017. 

 

The application deadline to participate in MORPC’s Summer Internship Program is November 10. 

 



Executive Committee Minutes 

November 3, 2016 

Page 2 

 
The County Member Forum, “Resilient Regions” with Dr. Ned Hill, is Thursday, November 10, 11:45 a.m. 

 

The insight2050 Planning Academy concludes November 4. Twenty-eight local officials participated in the 

Academy. 

 

Mr. Murdock congratulated MORPC’s insight2050 Team for receiving the Outstanding Overall Achievement 

Award for a TMA MPO by the Association of Metropolitan Planning Organizations (AMPO). This national award 

honors the efforts of a large MPO that has successfully advanced and promoted metropolitan transportation 

planning.  

 

Building Committee Update – Derrick Clay 

Derrick Clay reported that Columbus State Community College (CSCC) is no longer a viable partnership option 

for MORPC’s next building. CSCC took a different direction. The Building Committee continues to look for other 

options. MORPC Staff and the agency realtors are looking at other locations as well as considering whether to 

stay in the current location. An RFP asking for real estate options is being released soon and will be sent to 

Executive Committee members. Please send location suggestions to William Murdock or Shawn Hufstedler. 

The RFP will generate media attention. MORPC’s current lease runs through October 2017. 

 

Transportation Policy Committee Update – Thea Walsh 

The Attributable Funding Committee (AFC) met November 2 and is working to determine which projects will 

receive funding from the $70 million available. New project requests total $185 million. The Committee was 

given an update on FAST Act funding, which increased approximately $10 million for MORPC through 2023. 

The AFC will meet for a special mid-cycle meeting November 16. The public review and comment period is 

December 2 through January 3. 

 

The MORPC Rickenbacker Study Committee and the Columbus Regional Airport Authority (CRAA) Rickenbacker 

Committee are co-presenting at the November 29 Southeast Regional Collaboration Group Meeting. Both 

committees are meeting in December.  

 

MORPC received notification that there is a new solicitation from U.S. DOT for FASTLANE funding, which 

focuses on freight corridor funding, for up to $850 million. Applications are due December 15.  

 

Sustainability Advisory Committee Update – Christina O’Keeffe 

Christina O’Keeffe gave an update on MORPC’s involvement at PUCO on the local government energy 

partnership program. MORPC is in support of the Columbia Gas case. An agreement has been reached among 

partners with the AEP case. 

 

 Draft Regional Sustainability Agenda – Jim Schimmer, Kerstin Carr & Christina O’Keeffe 

Jim Schimmer presented the Regional Sustainability Agenda Proposal. Copies of the Draft Regional 

Sustainability Agenda were provided. Please provide input to Kerstin Carr or Christina O’Keeffe by 

November 23. The Sustainability Advisory Committee approved the draft Agenda and recommends 

adoption by the Executive Committee and Commission at the December meetings. Mr. Schimmer 

thanked Executive Committee member Karen Angelou for her participation on the Regional 

Sustainability Agenda Subcommittee and MORPC Team Member Brandi Whetstone for her leadership 

on the project. 

 

Regional Policy Roundtable Update – Laura Koprowski 

At the October Regional Policy Roundtable meeting, the Roundtable adopted the 2017-2018 Public Policy 

Agenda and discussed: broadband and cell tower right-of-way issues; lame duck session; new administration; 

HB 528 – license plate fees; and an Interested Parties Meeting for autonomous vehicles. 

 

 

http://morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/11-03-2016RSAPPT.pdf
http://morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/11-03-2016DraftRSA.pdf
http://morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/11-03-2016DraftRSA.pdf


Executive Committee Minutes 

November 3, 2016 

Page 3 

 
 Draft Public Policy Agenda – Kim Maggard, Laura Koprowski 

Kim Maggard presented the 2017-2018 Public Policy Agenda. Mayor Maggard thanked Commissioner 

Gary Merrell and Jim Schimmer for serving on the Public Policy Agenda Working Group. Laura 

Koprowski recognized MORPC Team Member Joe Garrity for his leadership on the project. 

 

Quarterly Financial Statements – Shawn Hufstedler 

Shawn Hufstedler reviewed the September 2016 Financial Report highlighting the following: 

 Cash position is about double from a year ago. 

 Operating income is similar to the last report. 

 Member dues are underspent versus the budget. 

 Fringe/overhead rates are lower than budgeted. 

 Accounts receivable and accounts payable are both improved from last year. 

 In October, $300,000 was transferred from the operating account to the reserve account as 

approved by the Commission. 

 

Draft Commission Agenda 

The Executive Committee reviewed the draft November 10, 2016 Commission Meeting Agenda. 

 

Executive Session 

Joe Stefanov made a motion for the Executive Committee to enter into Executive Session for the purpose of 

Section 121.22 (G) (1): To consider the appointment, employment, dismissal, discipline, promotion, demotion, 

or compensation of a public employee or official, or the investigation of charges or complaints against a public 

employee, official, licensee, or regulated individual, unless the public employee, official, licensee, or regulated 

individual requests a public hearing; second by Marilyn Brown. A roll call vote was conducted with all attending 

committee members in favor.  Executive Session began at 2:34 p.m. and concluded at 2:47 p.m. 

 

Gary Merrell made a motion to increase the Executive Director’s annual salary with a three percent (3%) merit 

increase, second by Derrick Clay; motion passed. 

 

Marilyn Brown made a motion to adjourn the meeting, second by Rob Platte; motion passed. 

 

The meeting adjourned at 2:48 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

Karen Angelou, Secretary 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

http://morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/11-03-2016PPAPPT.pdf
http://morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/11-03-2016SeptemberFinReport.pdf


 

Memorandum 
 
TO: 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

Executive Committee 

Officers and Board Members 

 

FROM: 

 

Kim Maggard, Regional Policy Roundtable Vice Chair 

 

DATE: 

 

November 28, 2016 

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution 23-16: "Adoption of MORPC’s 2017-2018 

Public Policy Agenda" 

 

 

This resolution formally adopts the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission’s 

(MORPC) 2017-2018 Public Policy Agenda. A working group consisting of members of 

MORPC’s Board, Regional Policy Roundtable, and other regional leaders collaborated 

to create a robust and well-defined public policy agenda. It consists of strategic 

initiatives and collaborative efforts that directly represent the interests and concerns 

of Central Ohio.   

 

The Public Policy Agenda was first presented and approved by the Regional Policy 

Roundtable at its October meeting. The agenda was then presented to the MORPC 

Commission in November.  

 

The 2017-2018 Public Policy Agenda serves as a framework for MORPC’s staff, 

members, and government affairs consultant. The public policy agenda was 

developed to implement a successful advocacy program and educate policymakers 

and community leaders about the work, goals, and impact of MORPC. It is a living 

document that will evolve as important changes and issues arise in the region. 

 

Attachment:  Resolution 23-16 

 



RESOLUTION 23-16 

 

“Adoption of MORPC’s 2017-2018 Public Policy Agenda” 

 

WHEREAS, members of the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (MORPC) Board and the  

Regional Policy Roundtable collaborated to create a robust and well-defined 2017-2018 Public Pol-

icy Agenda; and 

 

WHEREAS, it describes MORPC’s initiatives and collaborative efforts for the years 2017 and 2018, 

which directly relate to its mission, goals, and objectives; and 

 

WHEREAS, the 2017-2018 Public Policy Agenda provides a framework to advocate for policies that  

encourage making Central Ohio more competitive in a global marketplace while improving the quality 

of life in Central Ohio; and 

 

WHEREAS, the 2017-2018 Public Policy Agenda provides direction to MORPC members and staff in 

order to act in concert with those initiatives; and 

 

WHEREAS, the 2017-2018 Public Policy Agenda was designed to address important public policy is-

sues and legislation; and 

 

WHEREAS, the 2017-2018 Public Policy Agenda will help MORPC be a leader in regional, state, and 

national policies; now therefore, 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. That it supports and adopts the 2017-2018 Public Policy Agenda. 

 

Section 2. That the executive director is authorized to take such other action and execute and 

deliver such other documents as, acting with the advice of legal counsel, he shall 

deem necessary and appropriate to carry out the intent of this resolution. 

 

Section 3.  That this Commission finds and determines that all formal deliberations and actions 

of this Commission concerning and relating to the adoption of this resolution were 

taken in open meetings of this Commission. 
 

 

                                                                                

Matt Greeson, Chair 

      MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

 

Effective date: December 8, 2016 

Submitted by: Kim Maggard, Regional Policy Roundtable Vice Chair 

Prepared by:  Joe Garrity, Public Affairs Coordinator  

Authority:  Ohio Revised Code Section 713.21 

For action date: January 1, 2016 

Attachment:  2017-2018 Public Policy Agenda 



Resoluiton 23-16 

Attachment 

 

1 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission  

2017-2018 Public Policy Agenda 
*Approved by Regional Policy Roundtable and edited by Exectuive Committee 11/8/16* 

 

Lead–Opportunities for legislative and public 

policy leadership 
Goal 1: Promote regionalism at the local, state, and federal levels of 

government fostering economic growth, prosperity, efficient use of 

resources, and a high quality of life for Central Ohio residents.  

 Advocate for policies and legislation that enhance local government efficiency, collaboration, 

and the sharing of data and services. 

 Promote insight2050 and advocate for policies and legislation that will provide Central Ohio 

with the needed tools and resources to plan for the projected increase of up to one million 

people by 2050. 

 Highlight the valuable roles, responsibilities, and rights of local governments to improve the 

quality of life, environment, and economy.   

 Support federal and state tax and budget policies that balance the promotion of economic 

growth, while also ensuring the ability to provide vital local government services. 

 Work with our regional partners to identify significant projects and grant opportunities to 

benefit the region. 

 Position MORPC as a leading resource and innovator in regional planning strategies. 

 Promote policies, programs, and funding to ensure our region's transportation, fiber, water, 

sewer, and material management infrastructure are well maintained, affordable, vital, and 

resilient. 

 

Goal 2: Achieve an advanced and exceptional transportation system 

that connects Central Ohio's people and products to the world. 

 Seek additional revenue and innovative long-term funding mechanisms for transportation at 

the local, state, and federal levels. 

 Promote state and federal support and recognition of metropolitan and rural planning 

organizations, and their regional approach to transportation planning and funding. 

 Advance the importance of the logistics industry to Central Ohio and support investments 

and innovation in the region's inland port, including intermodal, rail, air, and other freight 

facilities. 

 Support sensible legislation and policies that measurably improve transportation safety. 



Resoluiton 23-16 

Attachment 

 

2 

 

 Advocate for an advanced, multi-modal transportation system that improves our region's 

access to more effective and efficient public and private transportation choices to connect to 

regional, national, and international markets. 

 Pursue policies and funding to expand transportation options to: work, education, 

health care, and social services. 

 Pursue policies and funding to advance the Central Ohio Greenways strategy for 

developing a more interconnected regional trail network. 

 Advocate for policies and support efforts that leverage Smart Columbus and the 

Northwest U.S. 33 Smart Mobility Corridor and incorporate data and intelligent 

transportation systems technologies, including connected vehicle technologies, and 

other related efforts. 
 

Goal 3: Conserve and enhance the natural resources, water, air, and 

land in our growing region. 

 Advocate for innovative strategies and funding to maintain air quality attainment, reduce 

emissions, and protect health by working with public and private partners. 

 Advocate for policies, innovative strategies, and funding to maintain and protect the quality 

and quantity of our water resources, balancing public and private sector interests, and 

traditional and new economic activities in our growing region. 

 Support and advocate for policies and funding for a timely cleanup and redevelopment of 

brownfields and/or vacant, blighted, or abandoned land and historic buildings in order to 

revitalize communities. 

 Pursue funding and policies to help protect and secure parkland, wetlands, trails, and green 

space. 

 

Goal 4: Promote energy efficiency and an abundant supply of safe, 

reliable, and affordable sources of energy for our growing region. 

 Promote energy efficiency and conservation, as well as renewable and cleaner energy. 

 Advocate for federal, state, and local energy policies and utility programs that foster 

economic growth, resiliency, and adoption of diverse forms of energy. 

 Promote the importance of the benefits associated with energy efficiency policies, funding, 

and programs. 

 Support innovative funding tools for public agencies, businesses, and nonprofit organizations 

to finance energy infrastructure improvements. 

 Assist in the rapid deployment of electric and alternative fuel vehicles and the establishment 

of charging and fueling infrastructure within the region.  

Collaborate - Opportunities to form coalitions 

with like-minded organizations 



Resoluiton 23-16 

Attachment 

 

3 

 

Economic Development 

 Promote a robust economy for the region and active collaboration with JobsOhio, 

Columbus2020, MODE, business organizations, and local governments to pursue national 

and state policies and funding to advance economic development. 

 Promote projects and policies that advance local food systems and farmland preservation to 

achieve food security. 

 Improve access to workforce training and to resources that enhance the financial stability of 

our region’s low- and moderate-income households. 

 Promote widespread deployment of connected fiber optic infrastructure and enhanced 

innovative funding to support collaboration around data usage. 

 Advance job attraction incentives, new tools, and strategies to encourage new jobs and 

investment to the region. 

Sustainable Growth 

 Promote efficient and effective use and management of waste streams through reuse and 

recycling programs that reduce environmental impacts and contribute to the economic 

competitiveness of the region. 

 Advocate for innovative land-use regulations and planning tools as a way to: promote 

sustainable growth; maintain and reuse existing housing and commercial buildings; conserve 

environmentally sensitive areas; encourage farmland preservation; reduce energy 

consumption; provide transportation alternatives; and promote effective material 

management. 

 Promote the development of policies that support lifelong and age-friendly communities. 

 Support policies and incentives that leverage existing infrastructure and encourage 

redevelopment and reinvestment in Central Ohio's neighborhoods and commercial districts. 

 Advocate for policies and funding that support a broad spectrum of housing options, 

including mixed-income communities, to meet the region's growing residential and workforce 

needs. 

 Promote innovative use of data and technology to support sustainability and resiliency of the 

region. 

Federal Funds 

 Support federal funding for defense installations, research, and other initiatives that benefit 

Central Ohio. 

  

 Participate in coalitions and partnerships for MORPC local government members to 

understand, engage, and better position themselves for federal funding through 

appropriations, authorizations, bills, grants, and other possible options. 



 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:   Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission  

   Executive Committee  

   Officers and Board Members 

 

FROM:   Commissioner Steve Stolte, Union County 

   Sustainability Advisory Committee Chair 

 

DATE:  November 28, 2016 

 

SUBJECT:  Proposed Resolution 24-16: “Adoption of MORPC’s 

2017-2020 Regional Sustainability Agenda” 

 
   

This resolution formally adopts the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning 

Commission’s (MORPC) 2017-2020 Regional Sustainability Agenda. This 

Agenda replaces one that was previously-adopted for 2016-2017. A 

subcommittee of the Sustainability Advisory Committee (SAC) conducted a 

comprehensive and extensive process to recommend a Regional 

Sustainability Agenda for 2017-2020. This document will serve as a 

framework for MORPC’s staff and working groups to guide the work and 

programming towards a more sustainable region.  

 

This Agenda is aligned with MORPC’s Metropolitan Transportation Plan 

(MTP) and includes consideration for other regional plans and initiatives, 

such as MORPC’s Public Policy Agenda, insight2050, Sustaining Scioto, 

and Regional Energy Action Plan. Input was also sought from MORPC 

members and working groups.   

 

The Regional Sustainability Agenda was presented and approved by the 

Sustainability Advisory Committee on October 18, 2016. It was then 

presented to the Executive Committee and the Commission in November 

for feedback and to address any questions.  

 

The 2017-2020 Regional Sustainability Agenda may evolve as important 

issues and key concerns arise throughout the next four years. MORPC will 

track progress annually, with an official report at its Summit on 

Sustainability. Further, the SAC will review the annual performance and 

provide any recommendations for improvements. 

 

Attachment:  Resolution 24-16  

 

 



RESOLUTION 24-16 

 

“Adoption of MORPC’s 2017-2020 Regional Sustainability Agenda” 

 

WHEREAS, members of the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (MORPC) Board and the  

Sustainability Advisory Committee collaborated to recommend the 2017-2020 Regional 

Sustainability Agenda to replace the one adopted from 2015-2016; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Regional Sustainability Agenda’s vision is of a diverse community of local 

governments and stakeholders collaborating on environmentally and economically 

sustainable practices, opportunities, and tools that support regional growth and vitality in 

the Central Ohio region; and 

 

WHEREAS, the 2017-2020 Regional Sustainability Agenda provides a framework for the 

goals and objectives that guide MORPC’s Sustainability Advisory Committee, working groups 

and staff; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Regional Sustainability Agenda is developed by incorporating the goals of the 

Metropolitan Transportation Plan and consistent with other previously-adopted plans, such 

as the Public Policy Agenda; and 

 

WHEREAS, Goal 1 is “Reduce per capita energy consumption and promote alternative fuel 

resources to increase affordability and resilience of regional energy supplies”; and 

 

WHEREAS, Goal 2 is “Protect natural resources and mitigate infrastructure vulnerabilities to 

maintain a healthy ecosystem and community”; and 

 

WHEREAS, Goal 3 is “Position Central Ohio to attract and retain economic opportunity to 

prosper as a region and compete globally through sustainable practices and solutions”; and 

 

WHEREAS, Goal 4 is “Create sustainable neighborhoods to improve residents' quality of life”; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, Goal 5 is “Increase regional collaboration and educational opportunities to 

advance innovative sustainability solutions”; and 

 

WHEREAS, MORPC is committed to furthering sustainability-focused programming and 

solutions that contribute to the overall health, quality of life and economic prosperity of the 

region; now therefore 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. That it supports and adopts the 2017-2020 Regional Sustainability Agenda. 

 

Section 2. That the executive director is authorized to take such other action and 

execute and deliver such other documents as, acting with the advice of legal 

counsel, he shall deem necessary and appropriate to carry out the intent of 

this resolution. 

 

 



Resolution 24-16 

Page 2 

 

Section 3.  That this Commission finds and determines that all formal deliberations and 

actions of this Commission concerning and relating to the adoption of this 

resolution were taken in open meetings of this Commission. 

 

 

                                                                                

Matt Greeson, Chair 

      MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

Effective date: December 8, 2016 

Submitted by:  Steve Stolte, Union County Commissioner, Sustainability Advisory  

    Committee Chair 

Prepared by:  Christina O’Keeffe, Director of Energy and Air Quality, and Kerstin Carr,  

    Director of Planning and Environment  

Authority:   Ohio Revised Code Section 713.21 

For action date: December 8, 2016 

Attachment:   2017-2020 Regional Sustainability Agenda 



 

Memorandum 
 

TO: 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

Executive Committee 

Officers and Board Members 

 

FROM: 

 

Thea J. Walsh, Director 

Transportation Systems & Funding 

 

DATE: 

 

November 28, 2016 

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution 21-16: "Authorizing the Executive Director to 

Enter into and Administer as the Prime Contract Holder of a 

Transportation Demand Management (TDM) and Ridematching 

System Platform Contract for the Ohio Association of Regional 

Councils (OARC) with RideAmigos" 

 

This resolution authorizes the executive director to enter into and administer as the 

prime contract holder with RideAmigos. This contract will be subcontracted with 

OARC members and other participants for TDM and ridematching services. MORPC’s 

Transportation Policy Committee Resolution T-16-16 accepts MORPC as the prime 

holder of the TDM and ridematching contract with RideAmigos for OARC.  

 

The intent of this resolution is a result of OARC’s Air Quality and Rideshare 

Subcommittee’s year-long commitment and collaboration to improve air quality and 

rideshare management, services, programming and administration for its 

metropolitan planning organization (MPO) members and others with funding from the 

Local Government Innovation Fund (LGIF) from the Ohio Development Services 

Agency (ODSA). 

 

OARC hired and collaborated with a professional consultant that conducted a 

feasibility study on the advancement of TDM throughout Ohio’s MPO regions. The 

study viewed TDM as a wide array of programs and policies that effectively make up 

an MPO’s strategy to encourage the more efficient use of transportation 

infrastructure by reducing Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT) on the transportation system 

(i.e., reducing the demand of single-occupancy vehicles [SOVs] on roads). The study 

also suggested that OARC adopt TDM as a means to enhance mobility options in a 

manner that contributes to local economic development strategies and the 

promotion of placemaking. 

 

As an outcome of the feasibility study, OARC sought proposals for a comprehensive 

web-based TDM platform that will serve as the backbone of future TDM services 

provided to the general public. To create efficiencies, this platform will combine and 

enhance the current ridematching services provided by OhioRideshare and 

RideshareOhio into one scalable TDM platform. The new platform will go beyond 

standard ridematching services (i.e., static rideshare matchlist reporting) and 

incorporate comprehensive TDM services that allow MPOs and others to support and 



 

 

 

Resolution 21-16 Memo 

Page 2 

incentivize the many alternative transportation options available to travelers that will 

reduce VMT.  

 

Using the RideAmigos platform OARC will capitalize on various personal mobility 

options available to the workforce as a means to promote place-making strategies 

developed by local governments and enhance economic development opportunities 

sought by local chambers of commerce. The TDM platform will have the capability for 

MPOs to manage relationships with employers, area mobility managers and human 

services where staff can then help administer TDM programs unique to each 

employer/activity center that wishes to capitalize upon this economic development 

resource. 

 

Attachment: Resolution 21-16 



RESOLUTION 21-16 

 

“Authorizing the Executive Director to Enter into and Administer as the Prime Holder of a 

Transportation Demand Management (TDM) and Ridematching System Platform Contract for the 

Ohio Association of Regional Councils (OARC) with RideAmigos” 

 

WHEREAS, the Transportation Policy Committee of the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

(MORPC) is designated as the Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) for the Columbus 

metropolitan area; and 

 

WHEREAS, MORPC is a member of OARC with other Ohio MPOs that have air quality and rideshare 

programs; and  

 

WHEREAS, OARC has an Air Quality and Rideshare Subcommittee that sought to upgrade and 

combine two distinct and incompatible commuter rideshare platforms into one robust platform with 

data analysis tools to serve multiple areas in Ohio that would assist in the reduction of single-

occupancy vehicles (SOVs), vehicle emissions, and administrative costs for users; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Subcommittee and MORPC hired a professional consultant using Local Government 

Innovation (LGIF) grant funds from the Ohio Development Services Agency to conduct a feasibility 

study and assist the OARC Subcommittee in writing an RFP to solicit and choose a vendor; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Subcommittee members included staff from MORPC and the following MPOs 

1. Akron Metropolitan Area Transportation Study (AMATS) 

2. Eastgate Regional Council of Governments [Youngstown] 

3. Miami Valley Regional Planning Commission (MVRPC) [Dayton] 

4. Northeast Ohio Areawide Coordinating Agency (NOACA) [Cleveland] 

5. Ohio-Kentucky-Indiana Regional Council of Governments (OKI) [Cincinnati] 

6. Toledo Metropolitan Area Council of Governments (TMACOG) 

who worked collectively through the process in selecting a vendor; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Subcommittee unanimously selected RideAmigos as the vendor to combine and 

enhance the two dated systems into a current state-of-the-art comprehensive web-based TDM 

platform; and 

 

WHEREAS, other entities such as mobility managers, human service agencies, activity centers and 

employers in Ohio will have the opportunity to use it; and 

 

WHEREAS, MORPC’s executive director is accepting MORPC as the prime holder of the contract with 

RideAmigos as described in MORPC Commission Resolution T-16-16; now therefore 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. That the executive director is authorized to enter into and administer as the prime 

holder of the RideAmigos a three year agreement for up to $210,000 with the 

opportunity to renew an additional two years and subcontract with OARC MPOs and 

others.   

 

 

 



Resolution 21-16 

Page 2 

 

 

Section 2. That the executive director is authorized to approve change orders for amounts up to 

the financial authorization levels in the MORPC bylaws without further authorization 

from this Commission.   

 

Section 3. That the executive director is authorized to take such other action and execute and 

deliver such other documents as, acting with the advice of legal counsel, he shall 

deem necessary and appropriate to carry out the intent of this resolution. 

 

Section 4.  That this Commission finds and determines that all formal deliberations and actions 

of this Commission concerning and relating to the adoption of this resolution were 

taken in open meetings of this Commission. 

 
 

 

             

Matt Greeson, Chair 

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

 

 

Effective date: December 8, 2016 

Submitted by: Thea Walsh, Director, Transportation Systems & Funding 

Prepared by:  Transportation Systems & Funding Staff 

Authority:  Ohio Revised Code Section 713.21 

For action date: December 8, 2016 
 



 

Memorandum 
 

TO: 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

Executive Committee 

Officers and Board Members 

 

FROM: 

 

Thea J. Walsh, Director 

Transportation Systems & Funding 

 

DATE: 

 

November 28, 2016 

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution 25-16: "Authorizing the Executive Director to 

Execute an Agreement with the City of Columbus to Support the 

Smart Columbus Project" 

 

Proposed Resolution 25-16 is authorizing the Executive Director to execute an 

agreement with the City of Columbus to support the Smart Columbus Project.  

 

The Smart Columbus Project is the result of planning and awards received as the 

winner of the U.S. Department of Transportation Smart City Challenge. Through the 

U.S. DOT’s vision, the city and its partners, including MORPC, have proposed the 

development of a multi-component transportation project deploying smart 

technology.  

 

The city will build elements of “a first-of-its-kind modern transportation system 

showing bold innovations, climate-friendly vehicles and technologies that link people 

to transportation information in ways that will improve quality of life, increase safety, 

reduce carbon emissions, and enhance mobility.” This project will have 

transformative effects on municipal transportation and will be a blueprint for 

transferable technology throughout the region, the nation and the world. 

The agreement memorializes MORPC’s support of the Smart Columbus Project via 

provision of funding, materials, goods, or technical support. Specific terms of the 

agreement include MORPC commitments of:  

 

 $600,000.00 in Attributable Funding, pending approval of a Transportation 

Improvement Program amendment for a qualifying project within the MORPC 

Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) area  

 Reporting associated MORPC progress and costs associated with the 

project’s Key Performance Indicators  

 Collaboration and coordination with the MORPC Regional Data Advisory 

Committee. 

 

 

Attachment: Resolution 25-16 



RESOLUTION 25-16 

 

“Authorizing the Executive Director to Execute an Agreement with the City of Columbus to Support 

the Smart Columbus Project” 

WHEREAS, the City of Columbus has been selected as the winner of the U.S. Department of 

Transportation Smart City Challenge, aimed at creating “a first-of-its-kind modern transportation 

system showing bold innovations, climate-friendly vehicles and technologies that link people to 

transportation information in ways that will improve quality of life, increase safety, reduce carbon 

emissions, and enhance mobility;” and 

WHEREAS, the City of Columbus will receive federal and private grant awards totaling up to $50 

million from the U.S. Department of Transportation (U.S. DOT) and Paul G. Allen’s Vulcan, Inc. to 

implement “a holistic, integrated approach to improving surface transportation performance within 

and integrating this approach with other smart city domains such as public safety, public services, 

and energy;” and 

WHEREAS, the City of Columbus is leveraging those investments to form partnerships with a 

consortium currently numbered at 27 public and private entities, securing additional funding and in-

kind contributions currently valued at $90 million to bring its Smart Columbus Vision to fruition; and 

WHEREAS, MORPC recognizes that the advancements conceived of during the Demonstration 

Deployment period of the Smart Columbus Program will have transformative effects on municipal 

transportation and will be a blueprint for transferable technology; and 

WHEREAS, MORPC has offered its patronage to the City of Columbus through the provision of 

funding, materials, goods, or technical support as part of that effort without expectation of receiving 

remuneration or tangible benefits from the City of Columbus; and  

WHEREAS, the purposes of this Agreement are to memorialize the partnership between the parties 

and to set forth the terms and conditions including:  

 

 MORPC shall award up to $600,000 in Attributable Funding, pending approval of a 

Transportation Improvement Program amendment, to the City of Columbus for a qualifying 

project within the MORPC Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) area 

 MORPC will assist Smart Columbus in reporting progress on the project’s Key Performance 

Indicators 

 MORPC will report to Smart Columbus Program Office progress and costs incurred on MORPC 

involvement with Smart Columbus 

 MORPC commits to collaborate and coordinate with the Smart Columbus Program Office the 

activities of the MORPC Regional Data Advisory Committee; now therefore 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. To authorize the Executive Director to execute and meet the terms and conditions of 

an agreement with the City of Columbus to Support the Smart Columbus Project.  

 

Section 2. That the executive director is authorized to approve one or more extensions for 

performance of services under the foregoing agreements and change orders for 

amounts up to the financial authorization levels in the MORPC bylaws without further 

authorization from this committee.   



Resolution 25-16 

Page 2 

 

Section 3. That the executive director is authorized to take such other action and execute and 

deliver such other documents as, acting with the advice of legal counsel, he shall 

deem necessary and appropriate to carry out the intent of this resolution. 

 

Section 4.  That this Commission finds and determines that all formal deliberations and actions 

of this Commission concerning and relating to the adoption of this resolution were 

taken in open meetings of this Commission. 

 

 

             

Matt Greeson, Chair 

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

 

Effective date: December 8, 2016 

Submitted by: Thea Walsh, Director, Transportation Systems & Funding 

Prepared by:  Thea Walsh, Director, Transportation Systems & Funding 

Authority:  Ohio Revised Code Section 713.21 

For action date: December 8, 2016 
 



 

 

 

Memorandum 
 
TO: 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

Executive Committee 

Officers and Board Members 

 

FROM: 

 

Shawn Hufstedler 

Chief of Staff & Director of Operations 

 

DATE: 

 

November 28, 2016 

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution 22-16: "Acceptance of the Fiscal Budget and 

Fund Account Appropriations for the operation of the Mid-Ohio 

Regional Planning Commission for 2017" 

 

 

This resolution establishes an agency operating revenue budget of $14,668,537 for 

calendar year 2017 and sets authorized appropriation levels for the agency expense 

and capital expenditures budget line items. 

 

The full 2017 operating budget document with comparisons to the 2016 revised 

budget and an executive summary highlighting key elements of the 2017 budget is 

attached. 

 

The additional proposed transfers are as follows: 

 Transfer $500,000 out of the Operating Reserve to the main operating 

account.   

o This transfer will only occur, if needed, in accordance with the 

operating reserve policy.  There is no known reason to anticipate the 

need at this time. 

 Transfer $500,000 into the Operating Reserve to return the funds transferred 

as noted above, if applicable. 

 Transfer $100,000 out of the Operating Reserve to the main operating 

account.   

o This transfer authorization is for the management reserve, if needed, 

to fund new intended revenue-generating activity and/or relatively 

minor shortages in funding for certain programs.   

 Transfer $100,000 out of the main operating account to the Operating 

Reserve.   

o This authorization is for the purpose of transferring positive net 

income from certain program groups to be invested in the Operating 

and Management Reserves in accordance with the Operating Reserve 

Policy. 

 

 

Attachment:  Resolution 22-16 



RESOLUTION 22-16 

 

“Acceptance of the Fiscal Budget and Fund Account Appropriations for the operation of the Mid-Ohio 

Regional Planning Commission for 2017” 

 

WHEREAS, the Commission annually adopts the agency budget and fund account appropriations; and 

 

WHEREAS, the finance team, working with the executive director and all MORPC departments, has 

formulated the 2017 Budget and fund account appropriations; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Executive Committee has reviewed the 2017 Budget and fund account appropriations 

and recommends adoption; now therefore, 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. That the operating budget attached as page 4 of the 2017 Budget is adopted. 

 

Section 2. That the finance director is hereby authorized and directed to adopt the 2017 fund 

appropriations as shown below and transfer funds up to the amounts listed in the 

transfer appropriation lines below. 
 

    Franklin   
 

Fund Org. County   2017 

No. No. Object   Appropriations 

    Code Account Title Budget 

9013 13570 510000 Salaries $5,170,813 

9013 13570 515000 Fringe Benefits 1,999,413 

9013 13570 520000 

Services & Charges and Ma-

terials 7,233,968 

9013 13570 540000 

Capital outlay – Equipment, 

Property Acquisition & Rehab 200,000 

9043 43570 540000 Capital outlay – Building 10,000 

9043 43570 520000 

Services & Charges and Ma-

terials 200,000 

      TOTAL $14,814,194  

   Initial Transfer(s):  
9043 43570 573300 Transfer Appropriation - Out $50,000  

9013 13570 473300 Transfer Appropriation - In $50,000  

     

   Transfer for Operating Reserve 

9042 42570 573300 Transfer Appropriation – Out $500,000 

9013 13570 473300 Transfer Appropriation – In $500,000 

     

9013 13570 573300 Transfer Appropriation - Out $500,000 

9042 42570 473300 Transfer Appropriation - In $500,000 



Resolution 22-16 

Page 2 

 

   Transfer for Management Reserve 

9042 42570 573300 Transfer Appropriation – Out $100,000 

9013 13570 473300 Transfer Appropriation – In $100,000 

    

   Transfer for Operating and Management Reserve 

9013 13570 573300 Transfer Appropriation – Out $100,000 

9042 42570 473300 Transfer Appropriation – In $100,000 

Section 3. That the executive director is authorized to take such other action and execute and 

deliver such other documents as, acting with the advice of legal counsel, he shall deem 

necessary and appropriate to carry out the intent of this resolution. 

 

Section 4.  That the finance director is authorized and directed to make any necessary alloca-

tion changes within a single fund of the appropriations up to 5 percent of the total 

appropriations to accommodate operating and accounting requirements of the Com-

mission. 

 

Section 5.  That this Commission finds and determines that all formal deliberations and actions 

of this Commission concerning and relating to the adoption of this resolution were 

taken in open meetings of this Commission. 
 

 

 

_________________________________________  

Matt Greeson, Chair  

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

 

Effective date: January 1, 2017 

Submitted by: Shawn P. Hufstedler, Chief of Staff & Director of Operations 

Prepared by:  Shawn P. Hufstedler, Chief of Staff & Director of Operations 

Authority:  Ohio Revised Code Section 713.21 

For action date: December 8, 2016 

 

Attachment:  2017 Budget  

    

 



 
2017 Budget 

111 Liberty Street 
Suite 100 
Columbus, OH 43215 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY .................................................................................. 1 

REVENUE AND EXPENSES BUDGET & SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL 

EXPENDITURES .............................................................................................. 4 

DETAIL OF MEMBER DUES ........................................................................... 5 

SCHEDULE OF APPROPRIATIONS ............................................................... 6 

APPENDIX 

DETAIL REVENUE BY DEPARTMENT ..................................................7-8 

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING SOURCES ...................................................... 9 

SCHEDULE OF SUBCONTRACTORS .....................................................10 

INDIRECT COST ALLOCATION BUDGET ..............................................11 

 

    TABLE OF CONTENTS !



REVENUE (Funding Sources – Page 9) 

Revenue from federal sources is budgeted to decrease by $301,183 to a total of $7,178,820 which 
accounts for 48.9% of the operating budget.  The primary decrease in budgeted revenue is due to the 
“catching up” and completing previous home repair programs and a reduction in the Home Weatherizaton 
Assistance Program.   
 
State funding is expected to increase by $44,125 primarily due to funding for transportation match and 
other state transportation programs.  The Clean Ohio program is now receiving state funding in the amount 
of $15,000. 
 
Utilities funding of $3,177,256 in 2017 is budgeted to increase by $421,801 primarily as a result of 
Columbia Gas and AEP programs.  Utilities funding is approximately 21.7% of total revenue and remains a 
stable funding area.  

With a budget similar to 2016 in total, the MORPC 2017 revenue budget is $14,668,537, an increase of 
$672,520 (4.8%). However, the details show some changing initiatives and new programs. Here are 
some notable highlights for 2017: 
 

 The Planning & Environment, Data & Mapping, and Transportation Systems & Funding Activities 
departments’ budget increased by $455,666 (6.4%) primarily as a result of continued funding of  
the 5310 Designated Recipient program and the funding earned for reporting vanpool ridership 
and operating costs into the National Transit Database (NTD). These programs that began in 
2015 brought new transportation money into the region focusing on mobility and planning. The 
budget also includes additional funding for the formalization of the Rural Transportation 
Organization to offer transportation planning assistance to many of the rural communities 
outside the MPO area.  The Detailed Revenue by Department schedule, beginning on page 7, 
shows additional detail on project fluctuations from year to year. 
 

 The Energy & Air Quality and Housing department funding decreased by $474,424 (7.4%). As 
expected, this budget anticipates a decrease in the Home Weatherization Program as well as a 
decrease in the Franklin County Home Repair Programs as we have completed older home repair 
programs and the work flow is smoothing out.  A portion of the budget includes funding for 
undetermined projects in anticipation of additional funding and new programs in the energy 
arena. 

 
The fringe rate will be 63.0% of wages in 2017. The indirect cost allocation rate will be 54.5% of direct 
labor in 2017.  Both of these rates have decreased from 2016 while maintaining a strong benefits 
package. Agency costs continue to be analyzed for cost savings opportunities and efficiencies. 

2017 Operating and Capital Budget 

1 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 



2 

EXPENSES (Page 4) 

Foundation/Corporate Funding is projected to be $44,365 in 2017, down $266,635 from 2016, 
primarily as a result of the sunsetting of the Weinland Park home repair program.  
 
Local and Other budgeted revenue is projected to increase by $226,688 to $2,796,093 primarily due to 
various local projects expected across the agency. This includes additional funds from COTA in lieu of 
NTD funding and a local study for Rickenbacker.  Some of this funding is unknown as to a specific source 
for 2017 but presumed to be local for budgetary purposes.  

2017 Operating and Capital Budget 

Salaries and fringe benefits are budgeted to increase by $553,845 (8.37%) to $7,170,226 primarily as 
a result of adding additional staff and raises in aggregate of 2.5%.  Staff size was budgeted at 73 FTE’s 
in 2016 and 78.4 FTE’s in 2017. The increase in FTE’s is the result of adding administrative support for 
four departments as well as changing temporary staffing to permanent staffing in the weatherization 
area. 
 
The Materials and Supplies budget of $550,000 in 2017, is the same as 2016.   
 
The Services–Subcontractors budget decreased by $192,499 to $2,786,441 for 2017 as a result of 
multiple fluctuations over MORPC’s various programs in 2017 vs. 2016. 
 
The Services and Charges budget increased by $304,871 to $4,097,527. This is due to the start of 
processing payments to the 5310 subrecipients for current and prior year programs.  
 

 
The capital expenditures budget for 2017 is $210,000. This is a decrease of $85,000 from 2016 since 
we are no longer acquiring property and rehabilitating the property in the Neighborhood Stabilization 
Program (NSP). The 2017 NSP home purchase will be made by Homeport, resulting in subcontractor 
costs to MORPC instead of capital costs.  This budget includes $200,000 for replacement of equipment, 
vehicles and other agency equipment and assets as well as $10,000 for leasehold improvements.  
 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES (Page 4) 



3 

The total current year member dues budget of $1,004,284 is $68,548 higher than the prior year as a 
result of mitigation adjustments which increased population estimates to better align estimates to the 
U.S. Census.  Additionally building member dues increased from 3.5 cents to 5.25 cents in 2017.  
Approximately $100,092 of this amount is budgeted to contribute toward the building lease expenses.  
$282,928 of the dues are set aside for MPO transportation match. Services to Members makes up the 
majority of the remaining funding with $460,704 budgeted for work for our members such as 
executive director services, proactive legislation and public policy work, and member services 
coordination.  Other notable uses of member dues include $25,000 for diversity and inclusion efforts, 
up to $200,000 (from prior years’ dues) for building due diligence, and $27,700 for strategic 
initiatives. Member Dues represents approximately 7% of operating revenue.    
 
Additionally, the pilot program for associate members has been successful with seven local units of 
government currently participating as members of MORPC at an annual rate of $1,000.   

APPROPRIATIONS (Page 6) 

The appropriations closely mirror the agency operating expenses and capital expenditures, coming in at 
$14,814,194 for 2017. Consistent with the operating expenses, the services & charges area shows the 
largest increase from 2016 as a result of such programs as the 5310 program. 
	

2017 Operating and Capital Budget 

USE OF MEMBER DUES (Page 5) 



REVENUE & EXPENSE BUDGET

REVENUE
2016 BUDGET 2017 BUDGET

INCREASE/ 
DECREASE

PLANNING & ENVIRONMENT, DATA & MAPPING AND TRANSPORTATION
Jointly Funded Projects (MPO) $2,636,840 $2,829,276 $192,436
Infrastructure Program & Clean Ohio 205,000 205,000 0
Special Projects 2,256,322 2,346,092 89,770
Ride Solutions 688,268 810,000 121,732
Local Projects Transportation 437,618 835,789 398,171
Other Misc. Environment, Mapping and Transportation 906,437 559,993 (346,444)

SUBTOTAL ENVIRONMENT, MAPPING AND TRANSPORTATION $7,130,485 $7,586,151 $455,666
ENERGY & AIR QUALITY AND HOUSING SERVICES

Air Quality Awareness $385,020 $400,000 $14,980
Energy Programs 3,954,130 4,082,635 128,505
Housing & Rehab Services 2,065,838 1,447,928 (617,909)

SUBTOTAL ENERGY & AIR QUALITY AND HOUSING SERVICES $6,404,987 $5,930,563 ($474,424)

MEMBER SERVICES/DEVELOPMENT $667,055 $716,357 $49,302

OTHER ($206,510) $435,466 $641,976

TOTAL REVENUE $13,996,017 $14,668,537 $672,520

Detail Budgets provided on pages 7-8

EXPENSES
2016 BUDGET 2017 BUDGET

INCREASE/ 
DECREASE

Salaries and Fringe Benefits $6,616,381 $7,170,226 $553,845
Materials and Supplies 550,000 $550,000 0
Services - Subcontractors 2,978,940 $2,786,441 (192,499)
Services & Charges 3,792,656 $4,097,527 304,871
Depreciation 45,540 $57,393 11,853

TOTAL EXPENSES $13,983,517 $14,661,587 $678,070

CHANGE IN NET POSITION $12,500 $6,950 ($5,550)

SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

SOURCES OF FUNDS
2016 BUDGET 2017 BUDGET

INCREASE/ 
DECREASE

Cash * $125,000 $210,000 $85,000

TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS $125,000 $210,000 $85,000

USES OF FUNDS
2016 BUDGET 2017 BUDGET

INCREASE/ 
DECREASE

Equipment, Vehicles & Other Assets $100,000 $200,000 $100,000
Leasehold Improvements 25,000 10,000 (15,000)

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES $125,000 $210,000 $85,000

* -  Represents cash from prior year building members dues revenue to be used for building improvements and due dilligence.

 4



DETAIL OF MEMBER DUES

SOURCES: 2016 BUDGET 2017 BUDGET
INCREASE/ 
DECREASE

RPC Member Dues ($.29 - 2016, $.29- 2017) $540,398 $552,892 $12,494
MPO Member Dues ( $.19.5 - 2016, $.19.5 - 2017) 331,217 351,300 20,083
Building ($.035 - 2016, $.0525 - 2017) 64,121 100,092 35,971
SUBTOTAL SOURCES $935,736 $1,004,284 $68,548
Withdrawals from Building Maintenance Funds $125,000 $210,000 $85,000
TOTAL SOURCES $1,060,736 $1,214,284 $153,548

USES:

Transportation $263,684 $282,928 $19,244
Foundations Grants & Other 5,000 5,000 0
SUBTOTAL LOCAL MATCH $268,684 $287,928 $19,244

Executive Director Services to Members $70,000 $72,000 $2,000
Proactive Legislative Activity 148,281 162,920 14,639
Public Policy & Multi-jurisdictional 73,266 76,700 3,434
Member Service Coordination 88,710 91,675 2,965
Annual Salary Survey 5,000 5,000 0
Mid Ohio Finance Administrators (MOFA) 1,900 1,450 (450)
Other Services to Members 48,409 50,959 2,550
SUBTOTAL FOR SERVICES TO MEMBERS $435,566 $460,704 $25,138

Executive Director Development $70,000 $70,000 $0
Executive Director & Staff Travel & Registration 10,500 16,300 5,800
Board Travel & Registration 3,600 5,300 1,700
Other Development/Business Development 12,065 2,110 (9,955)
SUBTOTAL DEVELOPMENT FUND $96,165 $93,710 ($2,455)

Strategic Initiatives $32,000 $27,700 ($4,300)
Diversity & Inclusion 21,000 25,000 4,000
Miscellaneous 5,700 2,200 (3,500)
Contingency & Cost Overruns 12,500 6,950 (5,550)
SUBTOTAL OTHER $71,200 $61,850 ($9,350)

Building Lease Expense $64,121 $100,092 $35,971
Building Due Diligence 100,000 200,000 100,000
Leasehold Improvements (Capital Expenditures) 25,000 10,000 (15,000)
SUBTOTAL OTHER $189,121 $310,092 $120,971

TOTAL USES OF MEMBER PER-CAPITA FEES $1,060,736 $1,214,284 $153,548

 5



ACCT # ACCOUNT TITLES 2016 BUDGET 2017 BUDGET
INCREASE/ 
DECREASE

SALARIES 
Salaries - Regular $4,755,547 $5,125,813 $370,266
Salaries - PTO and Sick Leave Payout 45,000 45,000 0

510000 SUBTOTAL SALARIES $4,800,547 $5,170,813 $370,266
FRINGE BENEFITS

PERS - Regular $665,777 $717,614 $51,837
PERS - PTO and Sick Leave Payout 6,300 6,300 0

SUBTOTAL PERS $672,077 $723,914 $51,837
Medicare Tax $69,608 $74,977 $5,369
Unemployment Compensation 5,400 10,500 5,100
Workers Compensation 47,376 70,000 22,624
Fringe Benefits Other (includes group 1,021,373 1,120,022 98,649
medical, dental, vision, life and disability)

515000 SUBTOTAL FRINGE BENEFITS $1,815,834 $1,999,413 $183,579
$6,616,381 $7,170,226 $553,845

MATERIALS, SERVICES & CHARGES 
Materials & Supplies $550,000 $550,000 $0
Services & Charges:

Subcontractors $2,978,940 $2,786,441 ($192,499)
Services and Charges 3,272,656 3,577,527 304,871
Rent and Utilities 450,000 450,000 0
Travel 70,000 70,000 0

520000 SUBTOTAL SERVICES & CHARGES & MATERIALS $7,321,596 $7,433,968 $112,372
$13,937,977 $14,604,194 $666,217

Capital Expenditures
Equipment, Vehicles & Other Assets $200,000 $200,000 $0
Leasehold Improvements 25,000 10,000 (15,000)

540000 TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES $225,000 $210,000 ($15,000)

$14,162,977 $14,814,194 $651,217TOTAL

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

SCHEDULE OF APPROPRIATIONS

TOTAL SALARIES & BENEFITS

 6



APPENDIX 



DETAIL REVENUE BY DEPARTMENT

PLANNING & ENVIRONMENT, DATA & MAPPING AND 
TRANSPORTATION 2016 BUDGET 2017 BUDGET

INCREASE/ 
DECREASE

MPO (Jointly Funded Projects)
Federal Highway Administration $2,109,472 $2,263,421 $153,949
Ohio Department of Transportation 263,684 282,928 19,244
MORPC Transportation Match 263,684 282,928 19,244
SUBTOTAL OF JOINTLY FUNDED PROJECTS $2,636,840 $2,829,276 $192,436

Infrastructure (OPWC/members)
Infrastructure Program & Clean Ohio $205,000 $205,000 $0

SUBTOTAL INFRASTRUCTURE PROGRAM $205,000 $205,000 $0

Special Projects
Regional Supplemental Planning $481,688 $179,464 ($302,224)
Regional Development (insight2050) $248,007 $278,561 $30,554
5310 Designated Recipient 1,243,937 1,587,492 343,555
Rural Transportation Partnership - Buckeye Hills 21,996 32,662 10,666
Rural Transportation Planning Organization Pilot 90,427 267,914 177,487
Freight Trends Study 45,600 0 (45,600)
Special Projects 124,667 0 (124,667)
SUBTOTAL SPECIAL PROJECTS $2,256,322 $2,346,092 $214,437

Ride Solutions
Ride Solutions $688,268 $810,000 $121,732
SUBTOTAL RIDE SOLUTIONS $688,268 $810,000 $121,732

Local Projects
Targeted Area Bus Pass Program 100,000 0 (100,000)
Competitive Advantage Program 113,650 277,000 163,350
Homes on the Hill 15,000 0 (15,000)
New Albany Traffic Forecasting 0 14,000 14,000
Data & Mapping, Other 25,000 33,887 8,887
Rickenbacker Study (NUC) 100,000 120,170 20,170
Various Local Transportation Projects (NUC) 83,968 390,732 306,764
SUBTOTAL LOCAL PROJECTS $437,618 $835,789 $398,171

Planning & Environment
Greenways Program 194,657 180,000 (14,657)
Age-Friendly Columbus 209,165 269,993 60,828
Safe Routes to School Conference 267,893 0 (267,893)
Summit On Sustainability 70,000 90,000 20,000
Local Foods 25,000 20,000 (5,000)
OWDA - Greater Ohio Policy - Phase 2 20,000 0 (20,000)
Various Planning & Environment Projects (NUC) 119,722 0 (119,722)
SUBTOTAL PLANNING & ENVIRONMENT $906,437 $559,993 ($346,444)

TOTAL ENVIRONMENT, MAPPING & TRANSPORTATION $7,130,485 $7,586,151 $580,333

NUC = Not Under Contract

 7



DETAIL REVENUE BY DEPARTMENT

ENERGY & AIR QUALITY AND HOUSING & COMMUNITY SERVICES 2016 BUDGET 2017 BUDGET
INCREASE/ 
DECREASE

Air Quality
Air Quality Awareness $385,020 $400,000 $14,980
SUBTOTAL FOR AIR QUALITY $385,020 $400,000 $14,980

Energy 
Columbia Gas WarmChoice $2,138,054 $2,411,956 $273,902
Home Weatherization Assistance Program 776,847 496,455 (280,391)
AEP Community Assistance Program 317,400 452,000 134,600
USF EPP Program 300,000 313,300 13,300
Franklin County Energy Study 100,000 110,365 10,365
Energy Project/PACE 25,000 20,000 (5,000)
Materials Management 0 7,609 7,609
Local Government Energy Partnership (NUC) 0 100,000 100,000
Various Energy & AQ Projects (NUC) 296,829 170,949 (125,880)
SUBTOTAL FOR ENERGY $3,954,130 $4,082,635 $128,505
SUBTOTAL ENERGY AND AIR QUALITY $4,339,150 $4,482,635 $143,485

HOUSING SERVICES
Residential Rehabilitation Programs
FC Urgent Repair Program 1,049,452 737,800 (311,652)
Homeport / PACT Home Repair Program 72,000 63,000 (9,000)
United Way Home Repair Program 154,890 116,000 (38,890)
Neighborhood Stabilization Program 2 374,030 374,000 (30)
Weinland Park Program 310,999 44,365 (266,634)
Mortgages Forgiven 23,800 32,264 8,464
FC Issuer Fees and Monitoring $12,297 $10,500 ($1,797)
Franklin County HAB $12,415 $10,000 ($2,415)
Various Rehab Projects (NUC) $55,955 $60,000 $4,045
SUBTOTAL FOR HOUSING SERVICES $2,065,838 $1,447,928 ($617,909)

TOTAL ENERGY & AIR QUALITY AND HOUSING SERVICES $6,404,987 $5,930,563 ($474,424)

NUC = Not Under Contract

MEMBER SERVICES/DEVELOPMENT 2016 BUDGET 2017 BUDGET
INCREASE/ 
DECREASE

Services to Members $435,566 $460,705 $25,139
Development Fund 96,164 93,710 (2,454)
Building Lease Payments 64,122 96,182 32,060
Other 71,203 65,760 (5,443)
TOTAL MEMBER SERVICES/DEVELOPMENT (See Dues Page for 
Details) $667,055 $716,357 $49,302

OTHER 2016 BUDGET 2017 BUDGET
INCREASE/ 
DECREASE

Other Revenue
RidePro HUB/WEB $20,000 $60,000 $40,000
Local Government Internship Program 10,800 $12,000 1,200
CMS Shared Services 200 $3,000 2,800
State of the Region Luncheon 75,000 $84,000 9,000
Interest 5,000 $5,000 0
Building Due Diligence * 100,000 $210,000 110,000
Indirect Costs Variance (carryforward from prior years) (181,618) ($204) 181,414
Fringe Benefits Variance (carryforward from prior years) (235,892) $61,671 297,563

TOTAL OTHER ($206,510) $435,466 $641,976

GRAND TOTAL $13,996,017 $14,668,537 $672,520

* Building Due Diligence is funded from prior years' Member Dues

 8



Schedule of Funding Sources

FUNDING SOURCES 2016 BUDGET 2017 BUDGET
INCREASE/ 
DECREASE

MEMBER DUES $935,736 $1,004,284 $68,549
FEDERAL FUNDING
Federal Highway Administration (MPO funding) $2,109,472 $2,263,421 $153,949
FTA/FHWA (other funding) 3,161,187 3,264,879 103,692
Ride Pro HUB/WEB/Trip 20,000 60,000 40,000
HUD - CDBG, HOPE 3 & Other 1,085,666 780,064 (305,602)
Neighborhood Stabilization Program 2 314,030 314,000 (30)
Other Federal 12,800 0 (12,800)
Home Weatherization Assistance Program 776,847 496,455 (280,392)
SUBTOTAL FEDERAL FUNDING $7,480,002 $7,178,820 ($301,183)
STATE FUNDING
Ohio Department of Transportation (MPO funding) $277,126 $282,928 $5,802
Ohio Department of Transportation Other 20,000 43,324 23,323
Ohio Public Works Commission (Infrastructure/Clean Ohio) 65,000 80,000 14,999
SUBTOTAL STATE FUNDING $362,127 $406,251 $44,125
UTILITIES $2,755,456 $3,177,256 $421,801
FOUNDATION/CORPORTATE FUNDING
Weinland Park/Cols Fdtn/Campus Partners/Chase $311,000 $44,365 ($266,635)
SUBTOTAL FOUNDATION/CORPORATE FUNDING $311,000 $44,365 ($266,635)
LOCAL & OTHER FUNDING
Infrastructure Program & Clean Ohio $140,000 $125,000 ($15,000)
Greenways Planning 164,655 180,000 15,345
Summit on Sustainability 70,000 90,000 20,000
Housing Local Contracts 342,342 548,081 205,739
Environment, Mapping & Transportation Local Funds 1,241,879 1,368,670 126,791
State of the Region 75,000 84,000 9,000
Energy and Air Quality 419,329 170,342 (248,987)
Local Government Internship Program 10,800 12,000 1,200
CMS Shared Services 200 3,000 2,800
Other 100,001 210,000 109,999
Interest 5,000 5,000 0
SUBTOTAL LOCAL & OTHER FUNDING $2,569,206 $2,796,093 $226,888
Interperiod Overhead Receivable/(Reserve) ($181,618) ($204) $181,414
Interperiod Fringe Benefits Receivable/(Reserve) (235,891) 61,671 297,562

TOTAL REVENUES BY FUNDING SOURCE $13,996,017 $14,668,537 $672,520

 9



SUBCONTRACTORS BY DEPARTMENT 2016 BUDGET 2017 BUDGET
INCREASE/ 
DECREASE

ENVIRONMENT, MAPPING & TRANSPORTATION
Regional Supplemental Planning $40,000 $40,000 $0
Greenways Funding 5,000 0 (5,000)
Regional Development (insight2050) 0 125,000 125,000
Age-Friendly Columbus 0 35,000 35,000
Rickenbacker Study (NUC) 0 20,000 20,000
Other Local Transportation Projects (NUC) 0 50,000 50,000
SUBTOTAL ENVIRONMENTAL, MAPPING & TRANSPORTAION $45,000 $270,000 $225,000
Energy & Air Quality
Air Quality Awareness $70,000 $70,000 $0
Columbia Gas WarmChoice 860,719 1,141,356 280,637
Home Weatherization Assistance Program 260,627 78,642 (181,985)
AEP Community Assistance Program 111,721 131,443 19,722
Franklin County Energy Study 0 65,000 65,000
SUBTOTAL ENERGY & AIR QUALITY $1,303,067 $1,486,441 $183,374
Housing Services
United Way Home Repair 121,890 72,000 (49,890)
Homeport / PACT 55,200 48,000 (7,200)
Weinland Park Program 206,000 40,000 (166,000)
Neighborhood Stabilization Program 2 364,131 344,000 (20,131)
FC Urgent Repair Program 883,652 476,000 (407,652)
Local Government Energy Partnership (NUC) 0 50,000 50,000
SUBTOTAL HOUSING SERVICES $1,630,873 $1,030,000 ($600,873)

TOTAL SUBCONTRACTOR EXPENSES $2,978,940 $2,786,441 ($192,499)

NUC - Not Under Contract

SCHEDULE OF SUBCONTRACTORS

 10



Indirect Cost Allocation Budget
January 1, 2017 to December 31, 2017

DIRECT LABOR TOTAL INDIRECT
LABOR & COST

& FRINGES ALLOCATION

Environment, Mapping & Transportation $3,632,349 $1,979,630
Energy & Air Quality, Housing Services 1,578,073 $860,050
Member Dues 242,632 $132,235
Other Grants & Programs 16,678 $9,090
Less:  Estimated Turnover & Soft Funding (400,136) ($218,074)

TOTAL GRANTS & PROGRAMS $5,069,597 $2,762,931

Indirect Labor

Information & Technology Services $205,451

Finance  598,099

Public & Government Affairs 317,533

Executive Management 373,758

Human Resources & Administration 163,732

Contract & Proposal Development, Other Indirect Labor 12,791

TOTAL INDIRECT LABOR $1,671,364

General Overhead Expenses

Materials & Supplies $79,109

Services & Charges 500,963

Rent & Utilities 323,600

Other General Overhead 167,691

TOTAL GENERAL OVERHEAD $1,071,363

Retention/Severance $20,000

TOTAL INDIRECT COSTS $2,762,727

ACTUAL INDIRECT RATES 54.50%

Carry Forward Balance as of  12/31/15 $204

ALLOCATED INDIRECT COSTS $2,762,931

ALLOCATED INDIRECT COSTS RATES 54.50%

INDIRECT GENERAL 

LABOR OVERHEAD TOTAL

Information & Technology Services $205,451 $236,636 $442,087

Human Resources 119,172 141,388 260,560

Administration 44,560 355,712 400,272

Retention/Severance 0 20,000 20,000

Finance  598,099 236,746 834,845
Public & Government Affairs 317,533 57,000 374,533
Executive Management 373,758 6,672 380,430
Contract & Proposal Development, Other Indirect Labor 12,791 37,209 50,000

TOTAL INDIRECT COSTS $1,671,364 $1,091,363 $2,762,727

 11



111 Liberty Street, Suite 100 
Columbus, Ohio 43215 

T 614.228.2663 
TTY 614.228.2663 

www.morpc.org 




